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The Williams Memorial Institute sits upon a knoll in the middle of its
spacious lot. There are a few trees on the southeast side, but most of the lot is
lawn, separated from the sidewalk by a low granite wall. To the rear of the building
is a parking lot, slightly lower and demarcated by a retaining wall. To the
northwest is a driveway and beyond that a two-story brick 20th-century building,
whichyalong with an Italianate residence some distance away, later became part of
the Institute propertye.

The building is in the Richardsonian Romanesque style and was completed in
1891, It is T-shaped in plan, 2% stories high, and has a hipped roof of rectangular
slate shingles. The walls are a coursed ashlar of rough-faced Stony Creek granite
with brownstone trim around door and window openings. To the rear is a large
hipped-roofed ell to which is appended a slightly lower gable-roofed projection.

In the rear wall of this small extension and at the points where the walls of the
ell meet the main building are tall, simple chimneys, three in all, built of
granite with brownstone banding.

The main entrance is on the northeast side and is contained within a porch
formed by a three-part arched opening. Above this is a gable-roofed wall dormer,
and on either side is a round, conical-roofed turret set into the wall. The
arches of the porch are supported on clusters of squat columns with leafy carved
cushion capitals. The arches are outlined with a smooth rounded molding, a band of
rough brownstone, and a band of floriated carving. There are faces carved into
some of the capitals and the molding. Above the entrance is another group of three
arches on columns, tall windows which rise higher than other second-story openingse.
In front of this group is a balcony of stone balusters. Above in the gable are
three small rectangular lights and in the very peak, a seal surrounded by a
checkerboard pattern.

The side facades are less complex, with wide doors recessed within single
round openings and smaller gabled dormers centered above. Like the turrets in
front, these dormers have knobby, fleur-de-lis finials.

Except for the round-arched windows in the end gables and those on the upper
story of the turrets, the window openings are straight-topped and mostly paired.
Those on the first story are divided in two by a stone transom which, like the
lintels and sills of both tiers, is extended into a continuous brownstone band.
The corners of the window openings are quoined with brownstone and in addition,
they have smooth engaged columns with a variety of Romaneque capitals. Similar
geometric and floral motifs are found in the copper rainspouts.

The interior was simply finished with a dado of narrow oak boards and plastered
walls. In the first-floor south room are cast-iron columns with medieval capitals;
recent renovation has revealed that they carry steel beams. In the main building,
the attic story is one large room, partially lighted by skylights, and the walls
are completely covered with the narrow boards. The building is being renovated
for use as a judicial facility, with courtrooms and judges' chambers. The
clagsroom space is being partitioned off and stairways have been relocated, but
exterior changes are minimal and most of th¢ interior woodwork is still intact.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Williams Memorial Institute is significant as an example of Richardsonian
Romanesque architecture. It is typical of the many public and institutional
buildings in this style, popular around 1890 and modelled after the work of
H.H. Richardson. The building's architects, Shepley, Rutan & Coolidge, were the
successors to Richardson's practice and included his son-=in-law.

The Institute is a catalog of the style — a sense of massiveness, simplicity
of form, a broad roof plane, rough=surfaced stone in contrasting colors, round-
arched openings in groups of three, deeply recessed windows and doors, and
medieval details, such as the fat colonnettes, the sculptured faces,and the well-
executed geometric and floral motifs carved into the capitals and bands of molding.
Somewhat unusual is the large amount of window surface. The darker trim around
the openings, the horizontal banding, and the breaks in the main facade formed by
the turrets are devices which allowed this functional adaptation, even though the
style usually called for alimited number of small openings.

The Williams Memorial Institute was a girls' secondary school. Established
by the will of a wealthy New London widow, the school opened in 1891 and could
accomodate 300 students. Although legally a private school, the Institute served
for many years as New London's high school for girls, for whom the city paid the
$ S5 general fee. The building was a source of pride to the school, especially
its large, airy classrooms and the open third floor, a room for Physical Culture.
intended, according to an early catalog, to "assist symmetrical physical
development.”

1 R . .
The Institute offers an informative comparisén with another New London

building, the Union Station designed by Richardson himself. Although the two
buildings are of similar size and shape, the station is much simpler and more
brooding. Its effect is almost entirely the product of shape and massing, and
ornament is limited to patterns in the brick and some very small scale carving.
As a popular style, Richardsonian Romanesque was more successful in imitating the
decorative vocabulary of Richardson than his sense of form and proportion. In
this sense, the style falls in the revivalist/picturesque mainstream of Victorian
architecture.
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This building is part of a larger redevelopment project which includes two
other nearby structures. Its eventual disposal as a separate parcel, as well as
an appropriate historical division, indicates the following boundaries for the
historical property: northeast by Broad Street, southeast by Brainard Street,
southwest by the retaining wall in the parking lot, and then northerly to the
driveway which forms the northwest boundary.
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